
Agenda: Board of Trustees 
December 5, 2024, at 4 pm  

Community Room, Ladd Library 

Literacy, Access, & Inclusion

Library Board President – Monica Challenger 
A. Call to Order
B. Consent Agenda – Action

o Minutes: November 7, 2024
C. Public Comments and Communications
D. Foundation Report – Charity Tyler
E. Friends of the Library Report – Libby Slappey
F. Board Education: Age Friendly Community at the Library – Kevin Delecki
G. Library Board Committee Reports

o Advocacy Committee – Elsabeth Hepworth, Committee Chair
• No Action

o Building Committee – Jade Hart, Committee Chair
• No Action

o Finance Committee – Chris Casey, Committee Chair
• No Action

o Personnel and Policy Committee – Susie McDermott, Committee Chair
• Action: Policy 4.03 Community Postings
• Action: Policy 4.05 Non-Smoking Policy
• Action: Policy 5.02 Fundraising Policy

H. Library Director’s Report
I. Old Business
J. New Business
K. Adjournment

The next Board of Trustees meeting is January 2, 2025 at 4 pm, in the Conference Room, Downtown Library. 

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 1 of 39

mailto:musilj@crlibrary.org


DRAFT Meeting Minutes 
Cedar Rapids Public Library 
Board of Trustees 
November 7, 2024 

Board members in attendance: [President] Monica Challenger, Ana McClain Jade Hart, Chris Casey, Susie 
McDermott, Elsabeth Hepworth (in person); Hassan Selim (via Zoom) 

Board members unable to attend: [Vice President] Jeremy Elges, Rafael Jacobo 

Staff in attendance: Dara Schmidt, Jessica Musil, Erin Horst, Kevin Delecki (in person); Patrick Duggan (via 
Zoom) 

Others: Libby Slappey, President, Friends of the Cedar Rapids Public Library (via Zoom) 

A. Call to Order
• Ms. Challenger called the meeting to order at 4 pm.

B. Consent Agenda – Action
• Minutes:

o October 3, 2024
o Special Event Application

Ms. Hart moved to accept the consent agenda. Ms. Hepworth seconded. The action carried with 
unanimous approval. 

C. Public Comments and Communications
• There being none, the meeting continued

D. Foundation Report – Charity Tyler
• Ms. Schmidt reported for Ms. Tyler, who is unable to join the meeting. Instead, Ms. Tyler

is attending a reception to honor her and other nonprofit leaders. Ms. Tyler is a 2024
Spirit of Minnie Rubeck Honoree for her efforts in leading the Inspiring Big Dreams
campaign for the new library project. We’re proud of her work and her recognition in our
community.

• The remaining 12.7 acres of land owned by the Foundation has been rezoned to
suburban/residential for the prospective buyer to continue the purchase. The Foundation
is continuing to work through the process before final sale completion. In addition to the
promised $10 million capital campaign on the Library’s behalf, any proceeds from the
land sale will go into the building project. Ms. McClain asked if we know the anticipated
earnings at this time. Ms. Schmidt noted it depends on the property’s taxation, which is
under investigation, as the difference could be significant. We should know by the end of
the calendar year.

• Campaign continues to go well and working to close the campaign no later than
March/April 2025.

• The joint Foundation and Friends newsletter was mailed the second week of October. The
year-end appeal will be forthcoming in the next few weeks. The Foundation will also
participate in GivingTuesday and use it as an opportunity to bring awareness to the
library project. It will also serve as another opportunity for smaller gifts for those who
haven’t had a chance to contribute yet.

E. Friends of the Library Report – Libby Slappey
• Ms. Slappey reported. The large fall sale was a success, earning $11,000 with proceeds

going toward the Friends’ $250,000 pledge for the Westside Library. Sale shoppers
appreciated knowing that the sale would directly impact this project. Volunteer turnout
was tremendous to help move books from storage and the sorting center into the library.
Ms. Slappey expressed thanks to the volunteers and the board of directors for their
coordination. Ms. Schmidt felt that the Friends and volunteers brought so much joy to the

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 2 of 39



library during the setup and sale. She shared appreciation and thanks for all the hard 
work. 

• Next up, the Friends are preparing for the Very Cherry Holiday event at the Cherry
Building on December 7. They will offer giftable books and basement books will be open,
offering vintage books and other collectibles.

F. Board Education: Collections Move Report – Erin Horst
• A year ago, the library staff made a major collection change for the downtown library. The

committee reviewed data and other information to make recommendations on moving
items with a goal to improve overall access. When the library opened in 2013, we made
assumptions on where to shelve items and over time, we understand what is working and
what needs updated.

• One of the main priorities was to make large print accessible on the first floor as well as
improve browsability in the children’s library and reduce loss for certain collections. The
committee had to ensure that if a collection was moved, that the new spaces could
accommodate the incoming collection. Some of the work could be done during open
hours. The biggest moves involved the Fiction area and was completed on the November
2023 all staff day to reduce disruptions.

• Ms. Horst reported on the changes over the past year since the move. Circulation for the
large print collection increased by 25%. Spark Kits and Book Club kits, now shelved in a
central location, increased by 275%. Science Fiction moved upstairs and despite that
showed a 4% increase. They were moved next to Graphic Novels, which were brought
closer to a staff station, cutting the loss rate by 75%. Biographies took over the large print
space and increased by 11%. Ms. Casey asked materials planning has started for the new
library. We have not yet but in general, we know there are some collections to keep by
the door and others you wouldn’t. Ms. McDermott asked if kits experience high theft. A
majority of the kits are not stolen though consistently the stress relief kit is stolen. The
Spark Kits are grouped throughout the library – kits upstairs are for adults, such as crafts,
activities, and something to try but not purchase. In the Children’s Library, children can
pick from early childhood literacy-based exploratory kits. At this time, we do not circulate
toys but have started circulating Tonies players and figurines.

• Feedback surveys were also conducted with staff and patrons. Most of the responses
were positive from both groups.

G. Library Board Committee Reports
• Advocacy Committee – Elsabeth Hepworth, Committee Chair

o Ms. Hepworth did not have a report or action as the committee did not meet in
October.

• Building Committee – Jade Hart, Committee Chair
o Ms. Hart reported. The Westside Library Groundbreaking event happened on Oct.

18. It was a wonderful event, and well attended. The committee invited two
vendors to present more on their qualifications for the Urban Plaza refresh
project at the downtown library. The hope is to have a contract and start the
project kick-off in December.

• Finance Committee – Chris Casey, Committee Chair
o Ms. Casey reported on the September Financial memo. We are a quarter of the

way through the year and would want to see revenues/expenses at 25%.
However, several large expenses are due at the beginning of the year, such as
Ladd Library’s rental has been paid in full. In time, this will all even out as it does
every year. Ms. Casey also noted that energy costs are going up and we’ll ask for
an increase for the next FY budget. Otherwise, there are no concerns.

o We have received our first pay application from Garling for the project. The board
approved the contract so we don’t have to approve payment unless there is a
contract change. The pay applications will be part of the board packets going
forward so the board can see the project’s progress.

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 3 of 39



o Action: Contract Amendment No. 3: OPN Architects for Westside Library Project 
(original contract amount was $1,272,100; total contract amount with this 
amendment is $1,331,300).  

• We are asking for an amendment to the OPN contract. With the reduced 
construction cost, we’ll be able to pay for the design and construct the 
landscaping with a Discovery Garden and native plantings. We’re working 
in direct connection with the parks department so the work’s timeline is 
complementary, economical and efficient. The exterior areas of the library 
will be maintained by the Parks Department so we want their expertise as 
well when designs are developed. This landscaping work will be done 
when the library opens regardless of the parks’ progress.   

The committee recommendation to approve the OPN contract amendment for 
$1,331,300 as presented in the packet carried with unanimous approval. 

• Personnel and Policy Committee – Susie McDermott, Committee Chair 
o Action: Policy 1.01 Bylaws. The committee reviewed the ByLaws and made two 

recommended changes. First, in Article II, Section 8, the suggested language 
meets the actual practice for expense processing. Second, in Article V, Section 1, 
the committee recommended not calling out the Nominating Committee as no 
others are listed. 

The committee recommendation to update the ByLaws as presented in the packet 
carried with unanimous approval. 

o Action: Policy 4.06 Use of Security Cameras. This policy outlines how security 
cameras are used with respect to privacy and within the law. Internal footage is 
considered a library record and requires a subpoena to obtain to respect the 
privacy of patrons’ use of materials. External cameras are public, and people can 
request copies, such as for an accident in the parking lot. This process is in 
alignment with public library records’ designation in Iowa law. Ms. Hart asked 
how often cameras are reviewed for requests. It varies – it can be once a month 
or several months without a request; and requests are not about materials. Our 
camera software has the capability to blur a bystander and the materials they 
have when releasing subpoenaed footage. 

o Action: Policy 5.00 Foundation and Friends of the Cedar Rapids Public Library. 
This policy gives basic information on how the Library, Foundation, and Friends 
work together to benefit the library. The committee did not recommend as they 
feel the Library has a great working relationship with the respective organizations. 

The committee recommendation to approve the reviewed policies as presented in the 
packet carried with unanimous approval. 

H. Library Director’s Report 
• Ms. Schmidt reported. Today was the first owner/architect/contractor meeting for the 

Westside Library Project. So far, contractors have completed mass excavation and have 
dug the basement foundation as well as install foundation tile. Things have slowed down 
with the recent rains and attempting to dry out the basement, where geothermal 
equipment will be housed. In next two weeks, the team will pour the basement footings, 
work on drainage of west parking lot, and bore the geothermal lines. These meetings will 
occur bi-weekly through the end of the project. Ms. Schmidt is also working with OPN on 
design change orders, such as adding solar panels and other larger expenses, now that 
the project has more money. Ms. Casey and Ms. Hepworth shared stories of community 
excitement over the project.  

• Now that the election is over, we can focus on advocacy efforts with elected officials. We 
know that Republican priority is to reduce taxes, which could impact the library. Final Linn 
County tax valuations will not be ready until January so our preliminary budget may need 
to change when the numbers are set. In addition, the FY26 budget is the first one that 
registered seniors over 65 will have property taxes reduced over a three-year process to 

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 4 of 39



$0. The library will continue to monitor and hold conversations for both advocacy and 
finance. 

• The current plan ends in June. Ms. Schmidt is starting a new process. With the new 
building process, it’s not the right time to bring in an external consultant. Ms. Schmidt 
would like to bring a two-year plan that we can accomplish with the opening of the new 
building. The goal is to have facilitated conversations with staff, high impact community 
stakeholders, and trustees. The library will ask the public to prioritize suggestions from 
staff and stakeholders. Staff conversations will begin in December with the goal to bring 
priorities to the community by April. Ms. Schmidt is grateful we can open a new building 
for our community. Funding challenges funding may alter hours but a rental location is 
vulnerable to closure. The groundbreaking event reinforced the importance of this new 
building for our community. 

• As a reminder, the library chose not to hold the staff professional development day on 
Nov. 11. Instead we’re partnering for a joint all staff day in February with five other 
libraries in the corridor. Trustees are welcome to attend and we’ll send a save the date. In 
the morning, we’ll host author Shola Richards as keynote and move to the downtown 
library for staff-led afternoon sessions. This is the first event we’ve hosted like this. 

• Ms. McDermott wanted to highlight a great story in the director’s report submitted by 
Branch Supervisor Wes Shirley. It’s a special story about relationship-building can impact 
a patron’s life to find compassion, housing, and stability during a difficult period. 

I. Old Business 
• There being no old business, the meeting continued. 

J. New Business 
• There being no new business, the meeting continued.  

K. Adjournment 
• There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:13 pm. 

 
The next Board of Trustees meeting will be held on Thursday, December 5, 2024, at 4 pm in the 
Community Room, Ladd Library 

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 5 of 39



To: Chris Casey, Finance Committee Chair 
From: Dara Schmidt 
Date: 11/21/2024 
Subject: November Meeting Financial Report 

I have reviewed the October 2024 financial information.  Remember – the budget serves as the City’s 
financial and spending plan for the year.  Regardless of how much money is available by fund – the 
library must have expense budget to spend.  Please see attached reports. When reviewing budget to 
actual, we assume: 
• At least 1/12 of revenue will be received per month (33.3% thru October).  Actual revenues are

expected to meet or exceed budgeted amounts.  Your department depends on these revenue
streams to fund expenses.

• No more than 1/12 of discretionary, fleet, facilities, and fuel budget is spent per month (25% thru
October since due to processing times, these expenses normally have a 1 month lag).

• For all other expenses, no more than 1/12 of the budget is spent per month (33.3% thru October).

Here are highlights or concerns that you should be aware of, or that need addressed: 

Operations – 151XXX: 
• Total revenues (excluding transfers in) are above budget at $331K or 40% of the $829K

budget.
• Total expenditures (excluding transfers out) are $2.9M or 36% of the $8.1M budget.

o Personal Services are on target with budget at $2M or 32.9% of the $6.2M budget (the
budget includes reduction of $141K for refresh).

o Total discretionary expenses are high at $450K or 53% of the $852K budget.
o Other expenses are high at $447K or 43% of the $1.04M budget.

 Full fiscal year of Ladd Library rent has posted to 524100.
 Facilities Maintenance Services has posted thru September for $67K.
 Energy Management has been billed thru October for $2,134.40.

Special Revenue – 7010XX: 
• Total revenues are below target at $24K or 12% of the $200K budget.
• Total expenditures (excluding transfers out) are $92K or 16% of the $560K budget.

o Personal Services is currently on track with budget at 20% or $34K of budgeted $169K.

CIP – 316XXX: 
• Total expenditures (excluding transfers out) are $2.38M or 22% of the $10.6M budget.
• The contract for refreshing the downtown library’s plaza is included in the packet. As this cost is

under $50,000, it does not need board approval but is included for transparency.

Westside Library:  
The second construction billing of $523,330.01 out of the $15,544,762.45 is included for transparency this 
month.  

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 6 of 39



City of Cedar Rapids
151 General Fund - Library
2024-10-31

Prior Current Current Percent of Current
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Favorable Budget Month

2024 2025 2025 (Unfavorable) Received 2025
Account Name Account YTD Actuals Adjusted Budget YTD Actuals Variance Spent Actuals

Revenue
Taxes
     Total Taxes - - - - 0% - 

Intergovernmental Revenue
State Operating 422001 31,207.43 115,000.00             30,776.85 (84,223.15)              27% 30,776.85 
Local Govt Grants and Reimb 423000 197,570.95             300,000.00             191,240.44             (108,759.56)            64% - 

     Total Intergovernmental Revenue 228,778.38             415,000.00             222,017.29             (192,982.71)            53% 30,776.85 

Other Revenue
Printing & Duplicating of Form 431006 10,562.09 25,000.00 10,830.76 (14,169.24)              43% 2,827.76 
Dept Charges-External to City 431012 57,172.32 259,792.00             64,073.54 (195,718.46)            25% 21,543.20 
Library User Fees - Not Fines 431201 9,405.64 10,600.00 16,819.03 6,219.03 159% 6,924.46 
Building Rental 461001 13,547.80 43,455.00 17,044.80 (26,410.20)              39% 5,970.20 
Postage / Handling 471001 7.00 - - - 0% - 
Contributions & Donations 471002 4,987.00 70,000.00 - (70,000.00) 0% - 
Sale of Inventory 471003 129.33 2,000.00 218.65 (1,781.35) 11% 61.35 
Damage Recoveries 471004 25.00 - - - 0% - 
Other Miscellaneous Revenue 471005 25.00 3,500.00 - (3,500.00) 0% - 
Cash Over (Under) 471007 (24.43) - (1.85) (1.85) 0% (6.99) 

     Total Other Revenue 95,836.75 414,347.00             108,984.93             (305,362.07)            26% 37,319.98 

Proceeds of Long Term Liabilities
     Total Proceeds of Long Term Liabilities - - - - 0% - 

Transfers In
     Total Transfers In - - - - 0% - 

Total Revenue 324,615.13             829,347.00             331,002.22             (498,344.78)            40% 68,096.83 

Expenditures
Personal Services

Regular Employees 511100 1,391,640.41          4,379,864.00          1,476,412.39          2,903,451.61          34% 363,641.63             
Temporary/Seasonal Employees 511200 7,759.50 43,368.40 9,828.00 33,540.40 23% - 
Overtime 511300 26,817.90 114,773.40             25,379.63 89,393.77 22% 7,659.33 
Other Special Pays 511400 3,394.90 17,158.00 7,114.76 10,043.24 41% 7,114.76 
Group Insurance 512100 212,073.16             818,207.00             250,932.49             567,274.51             31% 61,251.28 
Social Security Contributions 512200 108,315.29             348,485.00             113,695.08             234,789.92             33% 25,321.81 
Retirement Contribution 512300 136,384.59             431,057.00             142,849.83             288,207.17             33% 31,720.30 
Workers' Compensation 512500 24,723.16 61,747.00 19,936.20 41,810.80 32% 4,362.60 
Other Employee Benefits 512600 2,290.46 3,162.00 943.97 2,218.03 30% 220.63 

     Total Personal Services 1,913,399.37          6,217,821.80          2,047,092.35          4,170,729.45          32.9% 501,292.34             

Discretionary Expenses
Advertising & Marketing 521100 1,800.42 5,000.00 3,378.39 1,621.61 68% 395.60 
Consulting & Technical Service 521104 - 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 0% - 
External Contracted Labor 521105 88,796.23 125,466.00 14,431.16 111,034.84 12% 4,171.70 
Health Services 521106 150.45 - 79.65 (79.65) 0% - 
Legal Services 521107 7,751.18 - 10,717.29 (10,717.29)              0% 6,102.16 
Other Professional Services 521108 536.00 9,523.63 49.38 9,474.25 1% - 
External Banking/Financial Fee 521109 4,717.23 20,700.00 4,358.35 16,341.65 21% 1,664.88 
Security Services 521110 - 5,000.00 348.77 4,651.23 7% - 
Computer Hardware 522100 36,905.88 35,000.00 30,968.44 4,031.56 88% 880.00 
Computer Software Maintenance 522101 168,174.94             222,220.00 193,256.37             28,963.63 87% 140.75 
IT Services - External 522102 13,478.43 75,500.00 23,719.11 51,780.89 31% 6,830.00 
Building & Grounds Services 522104 - 15,000.00 4,372.18 10,627.82 29% 2,485.78 
Equip/Furniture/Fixtures Serv 522105 - 9,000.00 2,980.00 6,020.00 33% - 
Phone Services 523107 9,955.88 35,950.00 10,574.56 25,375.44 29% 2,493.19 
Rental of Equip & Vehicles 524101 947.20 500.00 - 500.00 0% - 
Printing, Binding, & Duplicate 525102 3,885.92 15,950.00 6,058.24 9,891.76 38% 5,724.94 
Awards & Recognition 531102 - 250.00 - 250.00 0% - 
Books & Subscriptions 531103 116,749.96             109,171.80 94,828.05 14,343.75 87% 10,400.44 
Cleaning & Janitorial Supplies 531105 - 1,250.00 117.66 1,132.34 9% - 
Computer Supplies 531106 783.91 5,000.00 754.60 4,245.40 15% 252.97 
Equipment/Furniture/Fixtures 531109 1,739.20 11,500.00 10,054.27 1,445.73 87% 265.84 
Photography Supplies 531110 - 300.00 - 300.00 0% - 
Miscellaneous Supplies 531114 - 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 0% - 
Office Supplies 531116 3,070.02 15,320.00 4,761.91 10,558.09 31% 771.68 
Paint Supplies 531117 - - 763.48 (763.48) 0% 728.13 
Program Supplies 531118 14,091.50 37,000.00 16,877.95 20,122.05 46% 4,720.23 
Shop Supplies 531119 7.99 250.00 263.64 (13.64) 105% 179.01 
Sign & Signal Supplies 531120 113.78 - - - 0% - 
Uniforms 531123 - 1,694.00 - 1,694.00 0% - 
Personal Protective Gear 531124 98.13 - 230.16 (230.16) 0% - 
LP Gas 532103 - - 33.54 (33.54) 0% 33.54 
Building & Grounds Supplies 533100 11,877.64 34,241.28 1,017.08 33,224.20 3% 384.00 

1

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 7 of 39



City of Cedar Rapids
151 General Fund - Library
2024-10-31

Prior Current Current Percent of Current
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Favorable Budget Month

2024 2025 2025 (Unfavorable) Received 2025
Account Name Account YTD Actuals Adjusted Budget YTD Actuals Variance Spent Actuals
Equip/Furniture/Fixtures Parts 533101 - - 2,029.82 (2,029.82) 0% 312.04 
Conferences, Training, Travel 542102 8,701.71 23,200.00 10,179.11 13,020.89 44% 2,195.59 
Dues & Memberships 542103 781.00 10,000.00 475.00 9,525.00 5% - 
Licensing Fees 542106 30.00 - - - 0% - 
Postage & Freight 542108 2,244.46 13,500.00 1,972.40 11,527.60 15% 9.95 
Mileage Reimbursement 542111 455.35 3,000.00 819.40 2,180.60 27% 208.84 

     Total Discretionary Expenses 497,844.41             852,486.71             450,469.96             402,016.75             53% 51,351.26 

Other Expenses
City Accounting Services 521113 28,500.00 - - - 0% - 
Administrative Area Charges 521114 125.00 - - - 0% - 
Routine City Facility Charges 522107 30,664.77 325,603.18             68,746.76 256,856.42             21% 25,656.86 
Routine City Fleet Charges 522108 431.81 1,150.00 1,935.56 (785.56) 168% - 
City Information Tech Services 522109 2,057.40 - - - 0% - 
Electricity 523100 69,217.24 243,800.00             77,625.79 166,174.21             32% 38,323.11 
Natural Gas 523103 70.94 4,500.00 133.09 4,366.91 3% 14.54 

Rental of Land & Buildings 524100 226,426.54             249,000.00             227,187.04             21,812.96 91% 3,265.00 
Liability Insurance 525104 15,975.68 46,866.00 16,579.22 30,286.78 35% 3,905.50 
Property Insurance 525107 45,309.32 162,212.00             54,070.68 108,141.32             33% 13,517.67 
Vehicle Insurance 525108 433.32 1,500.00 500.00 1,000.00 33% 125.00 
Gasoline Fuel 532101 67.86 498.58 170.85 327.73 34% - 

     **Total Other Expenses** 419,279.88             1,035,129.76          446,948.99             588,180.77             43% 84,807.68 

Capital Outlay
     Total Capital Outlay - - - - 0% - 

Debt Service
     Total Debt Service - - - - 0% - 

Transfers Out
Transfer Out-Inter 571100 - 20,000.00 - 20,000.00 0% - 

     Total Transfers Out - 20,000.00 - 20,000.00 0% - 

Total Expenditures 2,830,523.66          8,125,438.27          2,944,511.30          5,180,926.97          36% 637,451.28             

Net Revenues over/(under) Expenditures (2,505,908.53)         (7,296,091.27)         (2,613,509.08)         4,682,582.19          (569,354.45)            

2

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 8 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 9 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 10 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 11 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 12 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 13 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 14 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 15 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 16 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 17 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 18 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 19 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 20 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 21 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 22 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 23 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 24 of 39



Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 25 of 39



APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT PAGE 1 of 6 
AIA DOCUMENT G702

TO (OWNER): PROJECT:  Westside Library   APPLICATION NO: 02
PC CITY OF CEDAR RAPIDS P INVOICE NO: 003337 Distribution to:  

101 1ST STREET SE  3700 20th Ave SW  PROJECT NO: 54256 X OWNER
CEDAR RAPIDS,  IA  52401 Cedar Rapids,  IA  52404 ARCHITECT PROJECT NO: PUR0624-324     ARCHITECT

OWNER PO NO: 54256 LENDOR
FROM: Dale F DeMeulenaere GENERAL CONTRACTOR
(CONTRACTOR) Garling Construction, Inc. ARCHITECT: OPN ARCHITECTS   CONTRACT DATE: 9/11/2024 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER
PM 1120 11th Street A 200 5TH AVE SE 201    FROM: 11/1/2024 OTHER

Belle Plaine, IA 52208 CEDAR RAPIDS,  IA  52401  TO: 11/30/2024
CONTRACT FOR: General Construction
CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Application is made for Payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract.

Continuation Sheet, AIA Document G703, is attached.

Change Orders approved in APPROVED DEDUCTIONS
previous months by Owner 1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM .......................................................................... $15,525,000.00

Total $19,762.45 2. Net change by Change Orders ...................................................................... $19,762.45
Approved this Month 3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE (Line 1 +- 2) .......................................................... $15,544,762.45

Number Date Approved 4. TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO DATE ....................................................... $1,006,530.75
(Column I on G703)

5. RETAINAGE:
a. 5.00%  of Completed Work $50,326.54

(Column F + G  on G703)
b.   of Stored Material

(Column H on G703)
   Total Retainage (Line 5a + 5b or

Total in Column L of G703) ............................................................................................ $50,326.54
6. TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE ................................................................ $956,204.21

(Line 4 less Line 5 Total)
TOTALS  

Net change by Change Orders $19,762.45

7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT
The undersigned contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, (Line 6 from prior Certificate)............................................................... $432,874.20
information and belief the Work covered by this Application for Payment has been 8. CURRENT PAYMENT DUE ............................................................................ $523,330.01
completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, that all amounts have been paid 9. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE ........................................................ $14,588,558.24
by the Contractor for Work which previous Certificates for Payment were issued and (Line 3 less Line 6)
payments received from the Owner, and that current payment shown herein is now due. State of: IA

Subscribed and sworn to before me this  _________ day of _________________________, 2024
CONTRACTOR: Garling Construction Inc

Notary Public:
BY:  ____________________________________________________  DATE:  __________________

My Commission Expires:  

ARCHITECTS CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT AMOUNT CERTIFIED ...................................................................................................… $ 523,330.01
In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the data Five Hundred Twenty Three Thousand Three Hundred Thirty  Dollars and One Cent
comprising the above application, the Architect certifies to the Owner that to the best of 
 the Architect's knowledge, information and belief the Work has progressed as indicated, (Attach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied for.)
the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and the Contractor ARCHITECT:
is entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED. By: Date:  

This certificate is not negotiable.  The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the Contractor named herein.  
O Issuance, payment and acceptance of payment are without prejudice to any rights of the Owner or

Contractor under this Contract.

11-26-24

26th November

3-6-26

12/02/2024

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 26 of 39



CONTINUATION SHEET  AIA DOCUMENT G703 PROJECT: 54256 REGULAR ITEMS PAGE 2 of 6 
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT, containing   APPLICATION NO: 02
Contractor's signed Certification is attached. CONTRACT DATE: 9/11/2024  INVOICE NO: 003337
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. FROM: 11/1/2024 PROJECT NO: 54256
Use Column L on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply.TO: 11/30/2024 ARCHITECT PROJECT NO: PUR0624-324
A B C D E F G H I J K L M

SCHEDULED
VALUE

PREVIOUS
APPLICATION COMPLETED THIS MONTH TOTAL COMPLETE AND BALANCE TO FINISH

ITEM BILLING PERCENT WORK STORED PERCENT STORED TO DATE
NO DESCRIPTION OF WORK CODES AMOUNT AMOUNT COMPLETE IN PLACE MATERIALS COMPLETE AMOUNT COMPLETE BALANCE RETAINAGE
1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
2 Bonds/Permits/Builders risk 198,540.00 180,000.00 91% 180,000.00 91% 18,540.00 9,000.00
3 PM/Supv/Admin 485,625.00 30,000.00 6% 42,110.00 9% 72,110.00 15% 413,515.00 3,605.50
4 Temp enclosures/Temp fence/Temp heat 158,900.00 250.00 0% 12,455.00 8% 12,705.00 8% 146,195.00 635.26
5 Dumpsters/Cleaning 125,000.00 10,250.00 8% 10,250.00 8% 114,750.00 512.50
6 Mobilization/Equipment 41,312.00 9,000.00 22% 3,500.00 8% 12,500.00 30% 28,812.00 625.00
7 Submittal Exchange 20,000.00 20,000.00 100% 20,000.00 100% 1,000.00
8 SITEWORK/DEMO
9 Staking 22,580.00 22,580.00
10 Landscaping 124,995.00 124,995.00
11 Mobil/demo 57,000.00 32,000.00 56% 32,000.00 56% 25,000.00 1,600.00
12 Erosion control 93,078.00 7,500.00 8% 7,500.00 8% 85,578.00 375.00
13 Removals 9,800.00 9,800.00 100% 9,800.00 100% 490.00
14 Strip site 73,000.00 48,000.00 66% 48,000.00 66% 25,000.00 2,400.00
15 Mass grading 90,750.00 80,000.00 88% 10,750.00 12% 90,750.00 100% 4,537.50
16 Building excavation and backfill 204,000.00 35,000.00 17% 35,000.00 17% 169,000.00 1,750.00
17 Building and paving subgrade 156,234.00 20,000.00 13% 45,000.00 29% 65,000.00 42% 91,234.00 3,250.00
18 Topsoil 35,000.00 35,000.00
19 Storm 276,000.00 18,000.00 7% 18,000.00 7% 258,000.00 900.00
20 Water 196,418.00 82,879.00 42% 82,879.00 42% 113,539.00 4,143.95
21 Sanitary 34,423.00 20,000.00 58% 20,000.00 58% 14,423.00 1,000.00
22 Paving 761,262.00 761,262.00
23 Pavement markings 8,643.00 8,643.00
24 Over excavating 7,500.00 7,500.00
25 CONCRETE
26 Building concrete materials 473,210.00 116,095.00 25% 116,095.00 25% 357,115.00 5,804.75
27 Building concrete labor 397,265.00 105,078.00 26% 105,078.00 26% 292,187.00 5,253.90
28 Precase hollow core engineering 6,037.00 6,037.00
29 Precast hollow core material 79,430.00 79,430.00
30 Precast hollow core grouting 4,000.00 4,000.00
31 MASONRY
32 Mobilization 5,000.00 5,000.00
33 CMU around foundation 195,227.00 195,227.00
34 CMU first floor 220,147.00 220,147.00
35 Exterior brick 219,150.00 219,150.00

PAGE TOTALS $4,779,526.00 $434,550.00 9% $503,117.00 11% $937,667.00 20% $3,841,859.00 $46,883.36
REGULAR ITEM TOTALS $15,525,000.00 $439,536.00 3% $547,232.30 4% $986,768.30 6% $14,538,231.70 $49,338.42

CHANGE ORDERS $19,762.45 $16,121.05 82% $3,641.40 18% $19,762.45 100% $988.12
GRAND TOTALS $15,544,762.45 $455,657.05 3% $550,873.70 4% $1,006,530.75 6% $14,538,231.70 $50,326.54

MODIFIED AIA G703 - CONTINUATION SHEET FOR G702

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 27 of 39



CONTINUATION SHEET  AIA DOCUMENT G703 PROJECT: 54256 REGULAR ITEMS PAGE 3 of 6 
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT, containing   APPLICATION NO: 02
Contractor's signed Certification is attached. CONTRACT DATE: 9/11/2024  INVOICE NO: 003337
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. FROM: 11/1/2024 PROJECT NO: 54256
Use Column L on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply.TO: 11/30/2024 ARCHITECT PROJECT NO: PUR0624-324
A B C D E F G H I J K L M

SCHEDULED
VALUE

PREVIOUS
APPLICATION COMPLETED THIS MONTH TOTAL COMPLETE AND BALANCE TO FINISH

ITEM BILLING PERCENT WORK STORED PERCENT STORED TO DATE
NO DESCRIPTION OF WORK CODES AMOUNT AMOUNT COMPLETE IN PLACE MATERIALS COMPLETE AMOUNT COMPLETE BALANCE RETAINAGE
36 Cast stone sills 27,326.00 27,326.00
37 Sheltering 14,100.00 14,100.00
38 METALS
39 Structural Steel 463,822.00 7,497.30 2% 7,497.30 2% 456,324.70 374.86
40 Structural detailing 32,752.00 6,525.00 20% 6,525.00 20% 26,227.00 326.25
41 Misc Material 24,123.00 24,123.00
42 Joist & decking 212,234.00 212,234.00
43 Grating 76,596.00 76,596.00
44 Structural Steel Labor 341,250.00 341,250.00
45 Cold formed metal framing material 68,078.00 68,078.00
46 Cold formed metal framing labor 81,706.00 81,706.00
47 WOODS & PLASTICS
48 Rough Carp material 36,500.00 36,500.00
49 Rough Carp labor 55,500.00 55,500.00
50 Arch Wood Case material 30,733.00 30,733.00
51 Arch Wood Case labor 4,988.00 4,988.00
52 Wood paneling material 77,000.00 77,000.00
53 Wood paneling labor 22,040.00 22,040.00
54 THERMAL & MOISTURE
55 Weather Barriers 117,000.00 117,000.00
56 Roofing 395,713.00 395,713.00
57 Aluminum wall panels 361,564.00 361,564.00
58 Joint sealants and expansion covers 15,300.00 15,300.00
59 Foamed in place/Mineral wool insulation 30,000.00 30,000.00
60 Thermal insulation 28,104.00 28,104.00
61 DOORS & WINDOWS
62 HM Frames/Doors/Hardware- material 191,368.00 191,368.00
63 HM Frames/Doors- labor 83,424.00 83,424.00
64 Sectional doors 15,765.00 15,765.00
65 Aluminum storefronts 1,080,165.00 1,080,165.00
66 FINISHES
67 Gyp Brd Assemblies 133,271.00 133,271.00
68 Drywall 159,542.00 159,542.00
69 Tile 76,612.00 76,612.00
70 ACT 279,900.00 279,900.00

PAGE TOTALS $4,536,476.00 $14,022.30 0% $14,022.30 0% $4,522,453.70 $701.11
REGULAR ITEM TOTALS $15,525,000.00 $439,536.00 3% $547,232.30 4% $986,768.30 6% $14,538,231.70 $49,338.42

CHANGE ORDERS $19,762.45 $16,121.05 82% $3,641.40 18% $19,762.45 100% $988.12
GRAND TOTALS $15,544,762.45 $455,657.05 3% $550,873.70 4% $1,006,530.75 6% $14,538,231.70 $50,326.54

MODIFIED AIA G703 - CONTINUATION SHEET FOR G702

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 28 of 39



CONTINUATION SHEET  AIA DOCUMENT G703 PROJECT: 54256 REGULAR ITEMS PAGE 4 of 6 
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT, containing   APPLICATION NO: 02
Contractor's signed Certification is attached. CONTRACT DATE: 9/11/2024  INVOICE NO: 003337
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. FROM: 11/1/2024 PROJECT NO: 54256
Use Column L on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply.TO: 11/30/2024 ARCHITECT PROJECT NO: PUR0624-324
A B C D E F G H I J K L M

SCHEDULED
VALUE

PREVIOUS
APPLICATION COMPLETED THIS MONTH TOTAL COMPLETE AND BALANCE TO FINISH

ITEM BILLING PERCENT WORK STORED PERCENT STORED TO DATE
NO DESCRIPTION OF WORK CODES AMOUNT AMOUNT COMPLETE IN PLACE MATERIALS COMPLETE AMOUNT COMPLETE BALANCE RETAINAGE
71 Painting 99,954.00 99,954.00
72 Tile carpeting 184,271.00 184,271.00
73 Access flooring 303,415.00 303,415.00
74 SPECIALTIES
75 Wall proctection 26,314.00 26,314.00
76 Signage 15,575.00 15,575.00
77 RR Specialties 16,816.00 16,816.00
78 Lockers 8,583.00 8,583.00
79 Toilet partitions 13,430.00 13,430.00
80 Folding partitions 56,450.00 56,450.00
81 Flagpole 5,916.00 5,916.00
82 Wire mesh partitions 3,646.00 3,646.00
83 Fire protection 3,849.00 1,805.00 47% 1,805.00 47% 2,044.00 90.25
84 Utility shelving 2,080.00 2,080.00
85 EQUIPMENT
86 Book depositories 2,956.00 2,956.00
87 FURNISHINGS
88 Window shades 73,991.00 73,991.00
89 Countertops 3,770.00 3,770.00
90 Art display track 2,290.00 2,290.00
91 Bike racks 12,792.00 12,792.00
92 MECHANICAL
93 DMS Insurance/Submittals 80,000.00 22,500.00 28% 22,500.00 28% 57,500.00 1,125.00
94 DMS Plumbing 305,304.00 305,304.00
95 DMS Mechanical 525,500.00 525,500.00
96 DMS Fixtures/Equipment 562,000.00 562,000.00
97 DMS Closeout 8,000.00 8,000.00
98 Prull Submittals 17,600.00 4,400.00 25% 4,400.00 25% 13,200.00 220.00
99 Prull Material/Duct 148,300.00 148,300.00
100 Prull Shop Labor 80,580.00 80,580.00
101 Prull Equipment 471,690.00 471,690.00
102 Prull Install Labor 161,830.00 161,830.00
103 MIS Insulation Material 83,151.00 83,151.00
104 MIS Insulation Labor 70,832.00 70,832.00
105 SMB Test & Balance 62,560.00 62,560.00

PAGE TOTALS $3,413,445.00 $1,805.00 0% $26,900.00 1% $28,705.00 1% $3,384,740.00 $1,435.25
REGULAR ITEM TOTALS $15,525,000.00 $439,536.00 3% $547,232.30 4% $986,768.30 6% $14,538,231.70 $49,338.42

CHANGE ORDERS $19,762.45 $16,121.05 82% $3,641.40 18% $19,762.45 100% $988.12
GRAND TOTALS $15,544,762.45 $455,657.05 3% $550,873.70 4% $1,006,530.75 6% $14,538,231.70 $50,326.54

MODIFIED AIA G703 - CONTINUATION SHEET FOR G702

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 29 of 39



CONTINUATION SHEET  AIA DOCUMENT G703 PROJECT: 54256 REGULAR ITEMS PAGE 5 of 6 
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT, containing   APPLICATION NO: 02
Contractor's signed Certification is attached. CONTRACT DATE: 9/11/2024  INVOICE NO: 003337
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. FROM: 11/1/2024 PROJECT NO: 54256
Use Column L on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply.TO: 11/30/2024 ARCHITECT PROJECT NO: PUR0624-324
A B C D E F G H I J K L M

SCHEDULED
VALUE

PREVIOUS
APPLICATION COMPLETED THIS MONTH TOTAL COMPLETE AND BALANCE TO FINISH

ITEM BILLING PERCENT WORK STORED PERCENT STORED TO DATE
NO DESCRIPTION OF WORK CODES AMOUNT AMOUNT COMPLETE IN PLACE MATERIALS COMPLETE AMOUNT COMPLETE BALANCE RETAINAGE

106 AONE Geothermal 346,550.00 346,550.00
107 Baker Controls 248,803.00 248,803.00
108 Fire Protection Engineering 14,217.00 14,217.00
109 Fire Protection- M 71,440.00 71,440.00
110 Fire Protection- L 101,043.00 101,043.00
111 Fire Protection automation 18,000.00 18,000.00
112 ELECTRICAL
113 General Conditions 51,509.00 1,209.00 2% 1,009.00 2% 2,218.00 4% 49,291.00 110.90
114 Site Labor 72,272.00 1,972.00 3% 1,472.00 2% 3,444.00 5% 68,828.00 172.20
115 Site Materials 97,014.00 414.00 0% 414.00 0% 96,600.00 20.70
116 Service Labor 48,353.00 48,353.00
117 Service Materials 241,699.00 241,699.00
118 Lighting Labor 106,703.00 106,703.00
119 Lighting Materials 448,460.00 448,460.00
120 General Power Labor 104,714.00 104,714.00
121 General Power Materials 76,498.00 298.00 0% 298.00 0% 76,200.00 14.90
122 Fire Alarm Labor 16,043.00 16,043.00
123 Fire Alarm Materials 31,659.00 31,659.00
124 Div 27 Labor 34,661.00 34,661.00
125 Div 27 Materials 20,095.00 20,095.00
126 Div 27 Sub Contractor 506,117.00 506,117.00
127 Div 28 labor 13,752.00 13,752.00
128 Div 28 Materials 3,741.00 3,741.00
129 Div 28 Sub Contractor 109,010.00 109,010.00
130 DAS system 13,200.00 13,200.00
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140

PAGE TOTALS $2,795,553.00 $3,181.00 0% $3,193.00 0% $6,374.00 0% $2,789,179.00 $318.70
REGULAR ITEM TOTALS $15,525,000.00 $439,536.00 3% $547,232.30 4% $986,768.30 6% $14,538,231.70 $49,338.42

CHANGE ORDERS $19,762.45 $16,121.05 82% $3,641.40 18% $19,762.45 100% $988.12
GRAND TOTALS $15,544,762.45 $455,657.05 3% $550,873.70 4% $1,006,530.75 6% $14,538,231.70 $50,326.54

MODIFIED AIA G703 - CONTINUATION SHEET FOR G702

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 30 of 39



CONTINUATION SHEET  AIA DOCUMENT G703 PROJECT: 54256 CHANGE ORDERS PAGE 6 of 6 
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT, containing   APPLICATION NO: 
Contractor's signed Certification is attached. CONTRACT DATE: 9/11/2024 INVOICE NO: 
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. FROM: 11/1/2024 PROJECT NO: 

Use Column L on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply. TO: 11/30/2024 ARCHITECT PROJECT NO: 
A B C D E F G H I J K L M N

SCHEDULED
VALUE PREVIOUS APPLICATION COMPLETED THIS MONTH TOTAL COMPLETE AND TO DATE BALANCE TO FINISH

ITEM CHANGE ORDER BILLING PERCENT WORK STORED PERCENT STORED TO DATE
NO DESCRIPTION OF WORK NUMBER CODES AMOUNT AMOUNT COMPLETE IN PLACE MATERIALS COMPLETE AMOUNT COMPLETE BALANCE RETAINAGE
1 CO 1 COR 1 & 2 0001 19,762.45 16,121.05 82% 3,641.40 18% 19,762.45 100% 988.12
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35

PAGE TOTALS $19,762.45 $16,121.05 82% $3,641.40 18% $19,762.45 100% $988.12
CHANGE ORDER TOTAL $19,762.45 $16,121.05 82% $3,641.40 18% $19,762.45 100% $988.12

REGULAR ITEMS TOTALS $15,525,000.00 $439,536.00 3% $547,232.30 4% $986,768.30 6% $14,538,231.70 $49,338.42
GRAND TOTALS $15,544,762.45 $455,657.05 3% $550,873.70 4% $1,006,530.75 6% $14,538,231.70 $50,326.54

MODIFIED AIA G703 - CONTINUATION SHEET FOR G702

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 31 of 39



 
 

Community Postings 
 
At the Cedar Rapids Public Library we value civic engagement and free expression of ideas. We recognize 
the tension between providing organizations with opportunities to express their ideas and the need for 
an uncluttered, professional library facility. 
 
Library staff, under the supervision of the Library Director, has discretion to approve, reject, and limit 
community bulletins, hand‐outs, and other exhibits – size, number, duration, and display.  All displays 
must meet existing State and Federal laws on obscenity, libel, defamation of character and invasion of 
privacy. 
 
Community posting will be conscribed to a carefully maintained area within library facilities. 
 
Anyone can object to library’s use of discretion about community postings by corresponding with the 
Library Director in writing. The Library Director will seek to resolve the dispute and safeguard the 
library’s value for the free expression of ideas. The director will assist any customer in moving 
unresolved disputes to the library’s Board of Trustees for final consideration. 
 
 
Adopted: 2/2011 
Reviewed: 2013, 11/2015, 10/2022, 12/5/2024 
Revised: 01/02/2020 
 

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 32 of 39



 
 

Non-Smoking Policy 
 

 
At the Cedar Rapids Public Library we value the health, safety and comfort of our patrons and staff. 
 
In accordance with state law (Iowa Code 641.153.5), it is the policy of the Cedar Rapids Public Library 
Board of Trustees to prohibit smoking and the use of tobacco products, e-cigarettes, or other non-FDA 
regulated nicotine delivery devices in all library buildings.   
 
In accordance with the Iowa Smokefree Air Act, no smoking is allowed within the Cedar Rapids Public 
Library or its grounds. Smoking is also not permitted inside any library vehicle. 
 
 
Adopted: 03/29/90 
Revised: 03/31/94, 2/2011, 10/2/2014, 12/2015, 01/02/2020 
Reviewed: 2013, 1/5/2023, 12/5/2024 
 

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 33 of 39



 
 

Fundraising Policy 
 
The Cedar Rapids Public Library Foundation and Friends of the Cedar Rapids Public Library are important 
groups that depend on gifts, donations, and fundraising as the primary source of income for the support 
of library programs and activities. The Library Board of Trustees endorses and encourages those efforts. 
The intent of this policy is to recognize the Foundation and the Friends as the only groups permitted to 
conduct fundraising activities on any library premises and to provide guidance for the use of those 
facilities.   
 
Areas of the library to be used for Foundation and Friends fundraising purposes should be carefully 
chosen with consideration given to high visibility without interrupting traffic flow. Structures erected for 
these purposes must be portable and compatible with the design of the building. Signage used to direct 
potential customers and guests, or to promote the fundraising events, should conform to established 
library signage practices and guidelines. The Library Director and the appropriate board committee will 
be consulted concerning plans for fundraising activities on library premises. 
 
Fundraising events held by Foundation or Friends, under the sponsorship of the library, are for the 
benefit of these non-profit organizations and/or the Library and are not intended to represent 
competition with private enterprise. In the event of theft or damage to materials or structures used for 
fundraising, the library, its officers, and its employees will be held harmless. 
 
The exceptions to this policy include those described in the Meeting Room Policy or authors who sell 
books or media at the library on behalf of their publishers, bookstores or other distributors and who 
make a public appearance, talk, and/or have a book signing under the sponsorship of the library and its 
programming strategy. In these situations, proceeds from materials sales will not be directed to library 
support groups.   
 
 
Adopted: 03/30/89 
Revised: 10/29/92, 01/06/00, 12/05, 02/04/2016, 11/07/19, 02/02/2023 
Reviewed: 2013, 12/5/2024 
 

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 34 of 39



Power BI Desktop Fiscal Year 2025 to Date Statistics
through October for December Board Meeting

0K

2K

4K

6K

Nov 2023 Jan 2024 Mar 2024 May 2024 Jul 2024 Sep 2024

Downtown Ladd Outreach

0

100

Nov 2023 Jan 2024 Mar 2024 May 2024 Jul 2024 Sep 2024

Downtown Ladd Outreach

Programs

Director's Report

21,022
# of Attendees

11,244

7,783

1,995

325

190

144

659
# of Programs

Programming had an exciting month filled with big programs and patron favorites alike! There were New York Times 
Bestselling authors, dinosaurs, life-sized Barbies, and a livestream of the DeWolf Innovation Center Forum on Dementia 
and Aging. Our year-round programs continue to grow and attract new and returning patrons – daily story times, 
Expressive Arts, Dungeons and Dragon/Trading Card Games, Tai Chi, and so much more. The Maker Spaces keep 
gaining in popularity – nearly 60 patrons are now considered Certified Learners and can use the equipment 
independently. In the Opportunity Center, we have added a third RIVA AmeriCorp member, and have begun weekly
Conversation Groups, helping people become more comfortable using English in a conversational setting. Planning for 
Spring 2025 is well underway, and the first few bits of the Summer Reading Challenge are coming together as well!

Patron comes into Ladd on Tuesday night and needs to ILL a book that he needs for 
a class, just because he needs one discussion question on page 156. He needs it by 
Sunday - it won't get here in time. He knows it's at the University of Arkansas. We 
look on their catalog and find the library location - call the library. Guy answers 
and says they usually have to go through ILL for a scan, but he'll try this one time 
for us. No luck - book is checked out. Darn. Wednesday morning, try Worldcat to 
see where else book is. Ohio University has it. Call Ohio - they are willing to send 
page the same day for $20. Notify patron, also let him know I will keep looking. 
Find book at University of Colorado. Have to wait to call (mountain time). Get 
librarian who giggles at the question - "Hey, I need a favor. I can see you have this 
book in your course reserves (which means it doesn't lend) and I need to know what 
question 4 is on page 156." Librarian in Colorado "I live for this stuff." Give her call 
number and title. She finds book. "Hm - this is a long question - are you sure you 
want me to read it to you?" Me: "Will you text me a picture?" Her: "Absolutely" Got 
picture - sent it to patron. We are now his heroes and he is eternally grateful. -
Stephanie Hall, Branch Supervisor

Late in the day on a Saturday, an elderly 
gentleman came into Ladd and seemed 
to know which area he was looking for 
but I asked if he needed any help with 
anything.  He mentioned to me that he 
was looking for the next Debbie 
Macomber book in a certain series. He 
said the last book was Love Letters and 
he was reading the books with (to) his 
wife. Needless to say, my heart!  I helped 
him find the next book in the series and 
it was on the shelf! - Tina McCullough, 
Patron Services Specialist

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 35 of 39



Power BI Desktop

166,528
Physical

70,730
Digital

1,334
Technology

0K

50K

100K

Oct 2023 Jan 2024 Apr 2024 Jul 2024 Oct 2024

Databases Digital Physical

Borrowing & Collections

Physical Circulation, by Location

106,161

60,367

Downtown Ladd

87,365
Databases

The Materials Team has been working on inventory for our physical collections. 
Inventorying collections involves scanning each item into our database and comparing 
what is scanned or checked out with what the database has record of. This is enormously 
helpful with catching mis-shelved items in faraway sections and catching missing items. 
Once the initial reports are run, our shelving team takes a list of missing items and 
checks the shelves for them. Loss rates for most print sections are low and it isn’t unusual 
for missing items to be found in different areas of the library. Running this process 
regularly keeps the catalog updated and accurate. The  shelving team and Acquisitions 
Clerk assist in running and searching for multiple reports to find wayward items. These 
can include items that show they’re in transit to another library but haven’t been checked 
in there, items patrons believe they returned but were not checked in, or items missing 
from the shelf while holds are being pulled. 

325,957
Total

Fiscal Year 2025 to Date Statistics
through October for December Board Meeting

Volunteers

2,939
Total Hours

Volunteer Hours

0K

2K
2,291

478 170

Downtown Ladd Other

In November, we completed the process of transitioning our 
New Volunteer Orientation online. New volunteers will now 
complete the bulk of their orientation process via Niche 
Academy with training videos, handouts, knowledge checks, 
and open-ended questions. They will still come in for an in-
person component of the training to include a Q&A session 
and tour of the library spaces. We look forward to launching 
this new orientation process in the new year. Volunteer hours 
in October: 428

A patron came in asking if we 
had a fax machine.  I let her 
know we did, but I also asked 
if there was an email address 
she could send it to.  Because 
faxing cost money, but 
emailing was free.  She was 
able to find an email address 
and we got to work.  As we 
were emailing it, she said, "I 
knew exactly where to come 
to get help today!" - Rebecca 
Vernon, PS Librarian

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 36 of 39



Power BI Desktop

151,821
Physical Visits

Fiscal Year 2025 to Date Statistics
through October for December Board Meeting

Visits

110,497

41,324

Downtown Ladd

With the transition of the Navigator program through 
Willis Dady, we transitioned that former office space to a 
community partner office space. This partnership is 
managed by supervisor Wes Shirley and we have usage 
from Eastern Iowa Health Center, Waypoint, and Abbe 
Center. The intent of this space is to have resources 
available to current library users. Library staff does not 
manage appointments, schedules, or times. Many
patrons have made connections with staff from our 
partners. We hope this sustainable model will continue to 
grow and meet the need of our patrons.

75,749
Virtual Visits

PC Uses

0K

20K
23,307

9,556

Downtown Ladd

39,186
WiFi Sessions

Technology Access

The Technology Solution team is maintaining normal operations. The team works closely with the rest of the Materials 
team to keep their RFID (radio-frequency identification) equipment updated and troubleshoot issues with the materials 
sorter or microfilm readers. Larger IT purchases typically happen a little later in the fiscal year if there are available funds
and installation is worked around any summer reading programs or events.  

30K

40K

Nov 2023 Jan 2024 Mar 2024 May 2024 Jul 2024 Sep 2024

Patron came in looking for books on car repair for a 
particular make and model. The ones that he asked for 
were not available on the catalog. He looked dejected. At 
that point, I suggested our digital resource Auto Repair 
Store. He checked that and found exactly what he wanted 
to know. This was the first time I was recommending Auto 
Repair Source to a patron in real time. We were both very 
excited with the outcome. And patron was doubly happy 
that he could access that database from anywhere, even 
from his garage! He thanked us and left after saying: You 
never know what treasures you find here! - Sampurna 
Ghosh, Patron Services Specialist

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 37 of 39



Power BI Desktop

Meeting Room Use

Fiscal Year 2025 to Date Statistics
through October for December Board Meeting

0

200

400

Nov 2023 Jan 2024 Mar 2024 May 2024 Jul 2024 Sep 2024

0K

1K

2K

3K

4K

Nov 2023 Jan 2024 Mar 2024 May 2024 Jul 2024 Sep 2024

Downtown Ladd

The month of October was busy with approximately 3,916 patrons and about 248 reservations. This was a significant 
increase from September and due in part to large scale events like the Mayor’s Youth Conference, large musical 
performances, voting, and the Friends of the Library sale. In addition, the Abbe Center hosted its 75th anniversary 
celebration at the library and PFLAG hosted its Coming Out Day Celebration. The library supported local education 
through reservations made by the Academy of Scholastics and Personal Success, home school groups, and elementary 
school tours using the library this month. These occurred alongside the regular business and hiring events, social groups, 
game clubs, and more. 

884
# of Reservations

700

184

13,826
# of Users

11,123

2,703

Community Relations finished the winter issue of OPEN+ 
and began work on some internal strategy planning for 
the next year. We finished work on the Winter Reading 
Program collateral, and are excited to promote it as we 
get close to the end of the calendar year. We are 
working with our friends in Programming and Events on 
an upcoming software transition which should take 
some time in the coming months. More on that to come. 

We are continuing to keep the community updated on 
the construction project, including monthly updates in 
the library eblast, blog posts, and social media. We are 
working with the Welcoming Resources Strategic 
Committee to make recommendations for the new 
library as well as the system as whole. 

I purchase children's books regularly from the Friends. 
Recently I took a stack to five great great nieces and nephews. 
They knew I was coming, but when I arrived at the 
destination, the children, ages 6 months to 5 years, were 
standing in the front window, cheering me in. They were so 
excited at the prospect of "new" books that they clamored 
around, sitting close, while I pulled one book after another 
out of my bag. They each would look at the book and pass it 
along to others, or they would keep a special book close, so 
they could read it first. Soon all were engaged. The three-
year-old sitting right next to me was willing to delay pizza for 
reading. - Andrea Jilovec, Patron Services Specialist

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 38 of 39



Calendar of Initiatives - FY23-25 Plan Year Three
Initiative JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN
Literacy

Where we become a city of literacy.
Investigate and potentially implement adult literacy programs
Promote the library through community literacy and engagement

Access
Where we embrace big dreams in our community through investment in a 
permanent westside facility
Break ground for new westside library

Inclusion
Where we become a hub for civic engagement
Ensure basic understanding of government and community infrastructure
Create infrastructure to welcome new community members and provide access to 
community resources
Build cultural literacy and understanding

Board of Trustees' December 2024 Packet: Page 39 of 39


	Board Agenda 12.5.2024
	Board Minutes 11.7.2024
	December Finance Memo
	Library - October 2024 for December Board
	151 Ops OCT 2024

	Signed Contract - Design Services for Refresh of Library Plaza - Fehr Graham
	CRPL Fehr Grahm.pdf
	Insurance - Fehr Graham.pdf

	54-256 App 02 Owner ~ Owner
	4.03 Community Postings
	Community Postings
	Community posting will be conscribed to a carefully maintained area within library facilities.
	Anyone can object to library’s use of discretion about community postings by corresponding with the Library Director in writing. The Library Director will seek to resolve the dispute and safeguard the library’s value for the free expression of ideas. ...

	4.05 Non-Smoking Policy
	5.02 Fundraising Policy
	Board Statistics Dashboard FY24 October for December
	CRPL Strategic Plan FY23 Year 3
	Calendar Y3




